
1



DRAFT 

                    *        Requires Action 
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service & Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Dr NE, Comstock Park, MI, 49321  

 DATE & TIME  

Thursday, July 20, 2023, at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: June 15, 2023 

C. Lakeland Library Cooperative June 8, 2023 

D. Request: Kelloggsville Branch to be closed early at 3:00 PM on July 27, 2023, due to the 

carpets being cleaned.  

E. Request: East Grand Rapids Branch to have a late opening at 11:00 AM on September 9, 

2023, due to the Rhoades McKee Triathlon.  

F. Request: Caledonia Township Branch to be closed on September 30, 2023, due to 

Caledonia Township Harvest Festival.  

4. 2022 AUDIT REPORT Maner Costerisan  
 

5. FINANCE REPORTS – June 2023* 
 

6. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – June 2023 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Policy Manual Section 1.3: Intellectual Freedom*                   First Reading 

B. Policy Manual Section 2.1.4: Student Cards*    First Reading  

C. Resolution: Budget Amendment*       Roll Call Vote   
D. Resolution: Levy a District-Wide Property Tax*    Roll Call Vote 

E. Strategic Plan & KPI Quarter 2 Review  

8. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

10. MEETING DATES 

Next Regular Meeting: Thursday, August 17, 2023 – KDL Plainfield Branch, 4:30 PM 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT*  

2



DRAFT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Dr. NE, Comstock Park, MI 49321. 

 DATE + TIME  

Thursday, June 15, 2023, at 4:30 PM. 

BOARD PRESENT: Shirley Bruursema, Tracy Chrenka, Peter Dykhuis, Andrew Erlewein, Sheri Gilreath-

Watts, Nicole Lintemuth, Carla Moyer Hotz and Penny Weller. 
 
BOARD ABSENT: None. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Jaci Cooper, Jennifer DeVault, Sheri Glon, Randy Goble, Lauren Hagerman Tekelly, 

Kim Lindsay, Brian Mortimore, Elvia Myers, Kurt Stevens, Hennie Vaandrager and 

Lance Werner. 

 
GUESTS PRESENT: Brent Hotz, Chelsea Kean, Denise Mahony and Barb Wenger. 

 

.. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Erlewein called the meeting to order at 4:31 PM. 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: May 18, 2023 

C. Request for closure: Spencer Township Branch on Monday, June 26, 2023, due to 

installation of a generator. 

D. Request for closure: Spencer Township Branch on Wednesday and Thursday, July 5 & 6, 

2023 due to parking lot maintenance. 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Support: Supported by Mr. Dykhuis.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

4. FINANCE REPORTS – May 2023* 

The Interim Director of Finance Kim Lindsay gave a brief overview of year-to-date financials: 

• The KDL cash position at the end of May was about $25.9M compared to $25.3M at the same 
time last year. KDL had a nice bounce back in investment returns from the Atlanta Capital 

funds and has been able to earn roughly $110K on investments of excess cash with 
Huntington.  

3



DRAFT 

• KDL revenues through May were $26.7M or 90.6% of the total 2023 revenue budget. Overall 
revenues are up about $1.8M from 2022, primarily due to increased property tax collections. 

Just after closing the May books, KDL received a payoff of delinquent property taxes from 

Kent County of almost $500K and a check from Vergennes Township for $129K. 

• Expenditures through May were $13.1M or 40.7% of the 2023 annual budget. Overall 
expenditures are up about $960K from 2022. In year-over-year comparison, the majority of 

the increase comes from capital outlay, maintenance and utilities, and employee benefits. 
There will be a budget amendment for the July meeting to make any needed changes and 
to incorporate any additional use of fund equity in strategic initiatives. 

• The largest checks in the month of May were made out to:  

▪ TMC Furniture in the amount of $199,705 and $70,936 for WonderKnook 

▪ Priority Health in the amount of $153,280.62 for employee health coverage 

▪ Today's Business Solutions in the amount of $70,211.25 for annual kiosk lease 

▪ IP Consulting in the amount of $61,563.24 and $60,003.24 for April/May Colocation 

▪ Everstream Holding in the amount of $54,395.77 for KDL-wide fiber service 

 

The Board asked questions of staff and staff responded. 

 
Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to receive and file the May 2023 finance reports as presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Weller.  

RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

5. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – May 2023 

• Executive Director Werner shared that Summer Wonder has taken off! In the first week, 

approximately 3K participants registered on Beanstack.  

• Krause Memorial Branch held an Exotic Zoo Program that welcomed over 800 

participants.  

• Kudos to Director of IT Kurt Stevens, Director of Library Operations Jennifer DeVault and 

Regional Manager I Sandy Graham and the entire IT team for successfully launching the 

Express Library in Grattan Township. Kurt Stevens shared a few highlights: 

▪ The machine holds about 149 books. 

▪ On the first day, 23 books were checked out. 

▪ It is not considered a Library/Branch due to state aid requirements.  

▪ Sandy Graham will ensure that the Express Library remains well stocked. 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Policy Manual: Section 5 - Budget and Finance* 
Interim Director of Finance Kim Lindsay spoke to minor grammatical edits. 
Motion: Ms. Bruursema moved to approve the Policy Manual: Section 5 - Budget and 
Finance as presented.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Lintemuth.  
RESULT: Motion carried. 

 

4



DRAFT 

 
 

B. EmpowerU Partnership Overview 

Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper explained that EmpowerU is a Kent 
Intermediate School District Special Education Center Program that provides specialized 

instruction, opportunity-specific employment and independent living skills necessary for 
young adults. The KDL Service and Meeting Center will be hosting this program for the 
2023-2024 school year with an open house scheduled for Tuesday, August 16. 

 

7. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None.  

 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS** – Chelsea Kean is a patron of Lowell, as well as a recent applicant for 

the Alto/Lowell Regional Manager II position. She is attending the meeting in order to gain 

further awareness of the Board of Trustees and appreciates that the public is able to attend 

their meetings.  

 

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

Ms. Bruursema – Ms. Bruursema announced that the Gaines Township Branch remodel is very 

impressive. She also recently attended the Caledonia Township Community Report. Caledonia 

is very happy with KDL’s services. She is excited about the Grattan Express Library.  

 

Ms. Chrenka – Ms. Chrenka attended the Tyrone Township Summer Wonder launch and 

appreciated that it occurs after the school year has come to a close. She is equally impressed 

that Branch Librarian Caleb Perkins has earned several Katie Kudos from his peers and notes 

that he is “super” when it comes to book recommendations.  

 

Mr. Dykhuis – Mr. Dykhuis is excited to see Summer Wonder begin. He reiterated that he enjoys 

traveling to different branches and would appreciate going to more in the future.  

 

Mr. Erlewein – Chair Erlewein shared that the KDL Board Retreat will take place on July 12, 

2023, at the City of East Grand Rapids Building. The guest speaker will be Mandy Sharp Eizinger, 

Grand Valley State University Adjunct Faculty of College of Education and Community 

Innovation. KDL Executive Director Lance Werner will also be discussing book bans, among 

other things. An agenda will be sent out soon. 

 

Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Ms. Gilreath-Watts attended the Wyoming Branch Summer Wonder Kick 

Off and was impressed by the community support. There, she met an elderly man who was 

using the library as a third place while he gets his affairs back in order after a house fire. She 

shared that a friend of the family enjoys visiting all the KDL branches with their 18-month-old. 

 

Ms. Lintemuth – Ms. Lintemuth wished everyone Happy Pride Month and said that she was 

grateful to KDL for offering cooling stations during the Lowell Pride celebration. She 

appreciates the work that KDL does to make sure that everyone has access to books that 

5



DRAFT 

represent their lived experience. Recently, Ferndale Area District Library had their entire Pride 

display stolen. They posted an online “wish list” to help replace the collection, which has since 

been bought out twice. 

 

Ms. Moyer Hotz – Ms. Moyer Hotz has finally finished visiting all three of her townships and 

feels fully vested as a KDL Board of Trustees representative. She shared that each of the 

townships is grateful and excited to be a part of KDL. 

 

Ms. Weller – Ms. Weller inquired about the AV/Clock in the Bruursema Conference Room. 

Director of IT Kurt Stevens informed her that a Request for Proposal (RFP) has been posted in 

order to get the room completed.  

 

10. MEETING DATES 

Regular Meeting: Thursday, July 20, 2023 – Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center, 4:30 

PM. 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved for adjournment at 5:21 PM.  

Support: Supported by Ms. Gilreath Watts. 

RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL FOR DISTRIBUTION 

6



LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE 

BOARD MINUTES – Unofficial 

Thursday, June 8, 2023 at 9:30 a.m. 

Kent District Library Service Center 

Present: John McNaughton (GRPL), Diane Kooiker (HO), Ron Suszek (MADL), Maggie McKeithan 

(OS), Dale Parus (IC), Lance Werner (KDL), Carol Dawe (LL), Joe Zappacosta (SM), Karen 

McKinnon (AL), Shirley Bruursema (KDL) 

Lakeland Staff Present: Amber McLain, Sheryl VanderWagen 

Absent: None 

1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: The meeting was called to order at 9:31 by Lance Werner

2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA John McNaughton moved, supported by Maggie McKeithan, to approve

the agenda as presented - motion carried.
3) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS: There were no questions from members.

4) PUBLIC COMMENTS: There were no public comments.

5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Ron Suszek moved, supported by Dale Parus, to approve the board

minutes from April– motion carried.
6) FINANCIAL REPORT:

a) April and May Financials and Check Register: Shirley Bruursema moved, supported by Maggie

McKeithan to approve the April and May Financials as presented - motion carried.
7) PRESIDENT’S REPORT

a) Nothing to Report.

8) DIRECTOR’S REPORT

a) See written report.

9) COUNCIL/COMMITEE REPORTS

a) See Advisory Council minutes.

b) See Standards Committee Report.

10) ONGOING AND NEW BUSINESS:

a) Cedar Springs Update – Kamey Howe has resigned from her position as director at Cedar

Springs. Solon Township’s contract has been given notice that their contract is set to expire.

Cedar Springs has expressed interest in perhaps joining KDL’s contracted service area.

b) Update to Plan of Service: A document outlining the requirements for libraries to withdraw from

Lakeland. Language and verbiage regarding article IV were discussed – Dale Parus made a

motion to support the document as amended, Maggie McKeithan supported – Motion Carried.
c) Lakeland Funding Spreadsheet – Included for informational purposes.

d) Anatomy of a Collection Development Policy – A document created by the MCDA as a standard.
John McNaughton moved, supported by Karen McKinnon, to post the MCDA Anatomy of a
Collection Development Policy on the LLC Website - motion carried.

11) Public Comments:
a) None

12) Board Member Comments
a) John McNaughton – None
b) Diane Kooiker – Herrick North created an outdoor
c) Ron Suszek – MADL is currently undertaking a summer reading outreach program for one of their

municipalities that does not have a branch.
d) Maggie McKeithan – Spring Lake received a grant to aid in their fundraising.
e) Dale Parus – IC is also fundraising.
f) Joe Zappacosta – Hackley is hosting a Drag literary program that consists of the Drag Queens

dressing like a character in a book, open to all ages.
g) Karen McKinnon – Leighton’s summer reading starts Saturday and is finishing an LED light

conversion.:
h) Shirley Bruursema - Advocated for the new Library of MI trustee manual.

2

7



i) Lance Werner – KDL Summer Reading kicked off to grand success.
13) NEXT MEETING: Thursday, July 13 at 9:30 a.m. at Kent District Library Service Center.

14) ADJOURNMENT: Ron Suszek moved, supported by John McNaughton to adjourn at 9:59 -

motion carried.

Respectfully submitted by, 

Amber McLain 

3

8



9



 

 
10



 

 

Monday, July 10th 2023  

 

Board of Trustees  

Kent District Library  

814 West River Center Dr. NE  

Comstock Park, MI 49321  

 

Dear KDL Board of Trustees:  

 

I am writing today to request a branch closure for the Caledonia Township Branch on 

Saturday, September 30th 2023. This closure is requested to accommodate the Caledonia 

Township Harvest festival being held that day, which involves closing the road to the branch. 

The library staff will be participating in this festival by providing activities.  

 

The local Chamber of Commerce has requested our closure to accommodate pedestrian 

traffic on 92nd and for safety reasons. Thank you for your consideration.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

Lulu Brown  

Regional Manager I 

Caledonia Township and Cascade Branches 

 

CC: Lance Werner, KDL Executive Director 

11



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 14, 2023 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees of 
Kent District Library 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Kent District Library for the year ended December 31, 2022, and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 14, 2023.  Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in 
our engagement letter to you. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Kent District Library are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. In the 
current year, the Library adopted new accounting guidance, GASB No. 87, Leases.  The application of existing 
policies was not changed during year 2022.  We noted no transactions entered into by the Library during the 
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.  
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based 
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future 
events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those 
expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 

 
Estimates have been used to calculate the net pension asset. The estimated asset is approximately 
$1,518,680. 

 
Management’s estimated in calculating the liability for compensated absences: 
 
The estimated liability is approximately $724,000. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the balance of employee compensated absences in determining that it is reasonable in relation to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s determination of the estimated life span of the capital assets:  
 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management to develop the estimated life span of 
the capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

12



 

2 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement 
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. The most 
sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was: 

 
The disclosure of the pension plan in the notes to the financial statements describes that the contributions 
are determined based on an actuarial valuation.   

 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  Management 
has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit 
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant 
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose 
during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June 14, 2023. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the Library’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion 
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to 
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Library’s auditors.  However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 
 
  

13



3 

Other Matters 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves. 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees and management of Kent District Library 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

14

kkrc
Firm Sig



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended June 30

2023 2022

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.500% $1,411,170.95 0.100% $1,690,296.42

1.004% $2,281,124.42 0.009% $10,080,093.85

2.719% $56,928.04 0.691% $55,934.07

$11,714,641.00 $11,589,868.00

$9,147,524.57 $23,416,192.34

$24,611,388.98

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Huntington Liquidity Portal

Account

Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account

Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account

*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 

7.22%

Investment Account

43.05%

Pooled Funds 

.23%

Atlanta Capital

49.50%  

Checking Account

5.73%     

Investment 

Account

9.27%

Pooled Funds

.23%

Atlanta Capital 

47.60%  

Liquidity Portal

37.17%

15



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended June 30

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount

2022 Actual 2022 YTD Revenues 92.1%

2023 Actual 2023 YTD Revenues 93.0%

2023 Budgeted

2022 YTD Expenditures 47.9%

Expenditures 2023 YTD Expenditures 48.7%

2022 Actual

2023 Actual

2023 Budgeted 32,222,068$                              

25,297,537$                              

27,403,509$                              

29,478,777$                              

14,681,288$                              

15,701,172$                              

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2022
Actual

2023
Actual

2023
Budgeted

2022
Actual

2023
Actual

2023
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2022 YTD Revenues 2023 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Expenditures 2023 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2022

Actual

2023

Actual

2023

Budgeted

2022

Actual

2023

Actual

2023

Budgeted

M
il

li
o

n
s

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2022 YTD Revenues 2023 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Expenditures 2023 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



Kent District Library
Check/Voucher Register - Voided Checks

From 6/1/2023 Through 6/30/2023

Check Number Vendor Name Check Amount Check Date

86564 EasyVista, Inc. (3,321.00) 6/21/2023

Report Total (3,321.00)

Date: 7/7/23 09:57:39 AM Page: 1

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



 

49



 

50



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51

https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9575397
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9575425
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9575425
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9113613
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9113613
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/4948116
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6508871
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6526264
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C934495
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C917157
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867278
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C909786
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C909786
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C922522
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C922522
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C902930
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C911712
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867838
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867838
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C863916
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C934495
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C922522
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C922522
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C948474
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C934508
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C903676
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C884904
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C884904
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867278
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C948928
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C948928
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C935367
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9140729
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384649
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9310810
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8783654
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6397003
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6397003
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9157517
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8722705
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7349338
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7349338
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9511193
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9511193


  

STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 
July 2023 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Branch Librarian – Caledonia Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Plainfield Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Amy Van Andel / Ada Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids Part-time 

Branch Librarian – Cascade Full-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Alto / Englehardt Part-time 

Shelver – Alpine / Tyrone Township Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Caledonia Part-time 
 

 
 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Katherine Muszkiewicz Shelver – Gaines June 19 

Bernice Oliver Shelver – Kentwood June 19 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Marnie Horton Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood June 19 

Mae Fletcher Shelver - Wyoming July 3 

Linda Ruesink Shelver - Caledonia July 6 

Rachel Kaphing Assistant Branch Librarian – East Grand Rapids August 12 

Katie VanOort Assistant Branch Librarian - Plainfield August 16 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Audrey Barker 
Branch Librarian – 
Cascade  

Branch Librarian – Kentwood June 26 

Molly Dixon 
Shelver – Alpine / Tyrone 
Township 

Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Tyrone Township 

July 17 

Mads Terpstra Intern – Plainfield 
Assistant Branch Librarian – 
Kentwood  

July 17 

Dave Palma 
Branch Librarian – 
Cascade  

Regional Manager II – 
Englehardt / Alto 

August 7 

52



 
 
 

EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(AUGUST) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Rochelle Ball Patron Services 15 years 

Missy Lancaster Building Maintenance 9 years 

Tony Senna Sub Pool 9 years 

Sara Moseley Cascade 8 years 

Crystal Logan-Syrewicze Kentwood 7 years 

Christine Paige Nelson Township / Sand Lake 7 years 

Reilly Brady Finance 6 years 

Angela Deckard Amy Van Andel / Ada 6 years 

Seth Hoekstra Collection Services 6 years 

Kurt Stevens Information Technology 6 years 

Christine Hekman Kentwood 5 years 

Rachael Kruithof Byron Township 5 years 

Heather Groen Grandville 4 years 

Joel Kibbe Patron Services 4 years 

Natalie Budnick Plainfield 3 years 

Rachael Hamlet Kentwood 3 years 

Samantha Holland Caledonia 3 years 

Quinn Davey Patron Services 2 years 

Laurie Haan Byron Township 2 years 

Cody Ketchum Cascade 2 years 

Cathy Rinzema Collection Services 2 years 

Anh-Thu Vuong East Grand Rapids 2 years 

Dustin Arnett Kentwood 1 year 

Nathan Bartos Grandville 1 year 

Zack Bergers Wyoming 1 year 

Kelly DeHaan East Grand Rapids 1 year 

Natalie Kilgo Byron Township 1 year 

Madison Scheuneman Kentwood 1 year 

 

53



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2023 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  

 
 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 
SHIRLEY 

BRUURSEMA 
TRACY 

CHRENKA 
ANDREW 

ERLEWEIN 
PETER  

DYKHUIS 

 

SHERRI 
GILREATH 

WATTS 

CARLA 
MOYER 
HOTZ 

 

NICOLE 
LINTEMUT

H 

PENNY 
WELLER 

January 19, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

February 16, 2023 X* X X X X X X X 

March 16, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

April 20, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

May 18, 2023 X X X X  X X X 

June 15, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

July 20, 2023         

August 17, 2023         

September 21, 2023         

October 12, 2023         

October 26, 2023         

November 16, 2023         

December 21, 2023         

54



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

55

bookmark://Section1/
bookmark://MaterialsSelection/
bookmark://Gifts/
bookmark://IntellectualFreedom/
bookmark://CollectionMaintenance/
bookmark://ReferenceResearch/
bookmark://SharedCollection/
bookmark://InterLibraryLoan/


  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

56

bookmark://Section2/
bookmark://LibraryCardRegistration/
bookmark://CardsforVisitingStudents/
bookmark://InstitutionalCards/
bookmark://NonResidentCards/
bookmark://StudentCards/
bookmark://TemporaryCardsforAdults/
bookmark://LLCMemberLibraryCards/
bookmark://LostorStolenLibraryCards/
bookmark://PrivacyofUserRecords/
bookmark://LibraryDocuments/
bookmark://LostDamagedMaterials/
bookmark://Fees/
bookmark://AudioVisualMaterialsUse/
bookmark://BeyondBooksCollection/


RESOLUTION 
First 2023 Budget Amendment 

 

 

 MEETING INFORMATION 

A regular meeting of the Library Board (the “Board”) of the Kent District Library (the “Library”) was held 
at the Kent District Library Service Center, on July 20, 2023 at 4:30 PM. 

The meeting was called to order by_____________________________________. 

PRESENT:____________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT:        __________________________________________________________________________ 

 RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 2, Public Acts of 1968, MCL 141.421 et seq., as amended, it is necessary for 

the Board of the Kent District Library to adopt a General Fund Budget supported by the Library’s 

millage levy, and to amend a budget when resources so dictate. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

 

The Board hereby approves and adopts the General Fund Budget Amendment for 2023 attached here 

to and made a part here of. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted on a motion made by _____________________and 

seconded by ______________________.  Upon roll call vote, the following voted aye: _______.  The 

following voted nay: _____. The Chair declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted on 

the 20th day of July 2023. 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board 

of Trustees of the Kent District Library, County of Kent, Michigan, at a regular meeting held on July 20, 

2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to 

and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and 

that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by 

said Act. 

Dated:  July 20, 2023 

 

Andrew Erlewein, KDL Board Chair            Nicole Lintemuth.  KDL Board Secretary  

57



 
 

KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
2023 

 BUDGET AMENDMENT – 

 EXPLANATION OF REQUESTED AMENDMENT 
 

The following suggested amendment to the General Fund budget is designed to reflect the 

increase in overall anticipated revenues for 2023 and increase in overall expenditures for 2023.  

The budget amendment is proposed to keep KDL within the requirements of the State Budgeting 

Act and to fund various KDL initiatives.  The composition of the proposed budget amendment 
has been reviewed by the Leadership Team and the components of the various items in the 
proposed amendment were developed based upon consultation with KDL managers and reflect 

changes in operations and initiatives that have occurred after the development of 2023 original 

budget you approved in November.  The impact of the amendment is to increase the amount of 
fund equity that is anticipated to be used in fiscal year 2023 by $2,781,964.  Attached to this 

document is a summary of the proposed changes by budget area and below are explanations for 
some of the more significant items:   

  

 

1. $350,000 Increase to Interest Income 

Investment earnings were originally budgeted at $-0- to reflect the lack of investment returns 
that had occurred in 2022.  In 2023 our investment portfolio with Atlanta Capital has 

rebounded and we have been able to take advantage of investing excess operating funds 
from the timing of our tax collections in the Huntington Government Investment fund, which 

has resulted in a nice return. 

 

2. $1,261,775 increase to Employee Benefits 

After much discussion we are requesting to make a one-time deposit ($1.5M) to KDL’s 

defined benefit retirement plan.  KDL has not made a contribution to the plan for several 

years as the plan is fully funded and had experienced steady growth in its investment values.  
In 2022 the plan experienced significant negative investment performance which will affect 

the value of the plan over the next few years as the loss is amortized.  This contribution, while 
we have reasonable fund equity, will curb the need to make future contributions to the plan 
for many years barring another major downfall in the market. 

 

3.  $662,285 Increase to Salaries and Wages 

This increase is to account for the accrual that will be required at year-end based upon our 
last payroll period ending date for the year.  We will have one full payroll period earned at 

the end of 2023 but not paid until the first pay in January 2024. 

 

 58



4. $879,111 Increase to Capital Outlay 

The majority of this increase is due to capital projects from 2022 that were not able to be 

completed until 2023.  These projects include the WonderKnook project ($424,111) and the 
Catalog Stations and Software Upgrades project ($300,000).  Also included in this request is 
a set aside for equipment for the eSports initiative of $155,000. 

 

5. $184,918 Increase to Other Expenditures 

The largest item on increase for this area is a $175,000 increase for MarCom related to 

increased marketing and printing/publishing costs. 

 

6. $156,353 Increase to Contractual and Professional Services 

This increase is mostly related to additional software licensing costs for new software for 

KDL-wide scheduling, finance cloud-based software, and the software for the sort-assist 

project. 

 

59



Original 2023 7/20/2023 7/20/2023

REVENUES: Budget Amendment Change Amendment #1 Totals
Property Taxes 26,483,315                  -                                                26,483,315                                
Penal Fines 600,000                       -                                                600,000                                      
Charges for services 35,000                          -                                                35,000                                        
Interest Income -                                350,000                                       350,000                                      
Public Donations 200,000                       -                                                200,000                                      
Other Revenue 1,141,790                    73,710                                         1,215,500                                  
State Sources 1,018,672                    -                                                1,018,672                                  
Transfers In -                                -                                                -                                               

TOTAL REVENUES & 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

                  29,478,777                                        423,710                                  29,902,487 

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and Wages 13,856,694                  662,285                                       14,518,979                                
Employee Benefits 4,150,785                    1,261,775                                   5,412,560                                  
Collections - Digital 2,673,678                    -                                                2,673,678                                  
Collections - Physical 2,495,390                    5,040                                           2,500,430                                  
Supplies 862,296                       18,216                                         880,512                                      
Contractual and Professional Services 2,163,067                    156,353                                       2,319,420                                  
Programming and Outreach 474,280                       -                                                474,280                                      
Maintenance and Utilities 3,383,632                    13,636                                         3,397,268                                  
Staff Development 369,102                       24,340                                         393,442                                      
Board Development 15,000                          -                                                15,000                                        
Other Expenditures 748,332                       184,918                                       933,250                                      
Capital Outlay 1,029,812                    879,111                                       1,908,923                                  
Transfers Out -                                -                                                -                                               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & 
OTHER FINANCING USES

32,222,068                 3,205,674                                   35,427,742                                

REVENUES OVER 
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

(2,743,291)                  (2,781,964)                                  (5,525,255)                                 

KENT DISTRICT LIBRARY
GENERAL FUND BUDGET AMENDMENT #1

July 20, 2023

60



                                              RESOLUTION 
KDL Millage 

 
 

 MEETING INFORMATION 

61



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

62



  

 

63



 

80556:00002:7242706-1 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



������ ��� ���	
� ������ ������
����������������� ������� ���������!"�#���$�%&''('')�*!+$�����,�--)().&�/�0����1 ���23�2�4��������!"�#���$�%&56(7&&�*!+$�����,�-6.('86�/�0����1 �9:�$���������� -8-().. -&6(5.- ; 9<"��=��>��"��?���" 6-, 66  9=��0��>>��0�@��"�/���"�ABCDEFGCHIJ�KCDLMFNOC�POPGQR S6(76. -&(S.& T39U���"��!�@��"�/���"�ABCDLMFNOC�POPGQR ')(--) S'(6')  T9V�0�0"/����/!��/"�$ 5.8(65. 5.&(&67 ;�9�"�!�VWW"���X"�"$$�AYOZEKCGPKOC�O[�CM\�LGPFOC�PKH]MPN�GĈ�LMFHMCPG_M�O[�FMNOQ̀M̂�LGPFOC�PKH]MPNR 57,�*����$ 56�*����$%S'��X0a��"b�>���!�+����#"�$�,�8)c��"$��X"/����#"�$1 d��efghij=��k"��$������>" l�6.c 6-c 49

����������
��
�m��n�om��p�hq�rstuivu��w� �x�eugy�;�zshv{

���m���m�
����m��|�m�
����m���

�
73



���������	
�������������������������������������������������  �!"# !$%"&# '()*(+�����������,-,����.������������������� //#01-��
��2-.3��-��4��-,�5 67# 89+:��-.3��;�������������������� <"=>=== <&">"&= ?9+@
A,�.��B���A3.
��;���������C���D���CD��D�������EFG�H��C���F����� "=# 7I# '9+�-����J3.��-K��L��,�-��L-�.3K3�-.3����M�NH����D��O�N���F��������� !P>"$= !&>!=& 8+2�Q�R-�AS��A���T3,�
�; P>7/& ">6P" '(*+

UVWXVYZ[\]̂]U\̂W _XŶXZ̀\U
74


	July 2023 Board of Trustees Cover Page
	07.20.2023 Board of Trustee Agenda 
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	06.15.2023- Board Meeting Minutes  
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Minutes


	Lakeland Library Cooperative June 8 2023
	Unofficial Board Minutes 2023-06
	LAKELAND LIBRARY COOPERATIVE
	BOARD MINUTES – Unofficial
	1) CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: The meeting was called to order at 9:31 by Lance Werner
	2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA John McNaughton moved, supported by Maggie McKeithan, to approve the agenda as presented - motion carried.
	3) QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS: There were no questions from members.
	4) PUBLIC COMMENTS: There were no public comments.
	5) APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Ron Suszek moved, supported by Dale Parus, to approve the board minutes from April– motion carried.
	6) FINANCIAL REPORT:
	a) April and May Financials and Check Register: Shirley Bruursema moved, supported by Maggie McKeithan to approve the April and May Financials as presented - motion carried.
	7) PRESIDENT’S REPORT
	a)  Nothing to Report.
	8) DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	9) COUNCIL/COMMITEE REPORTS
	10) ONGOING AND NEW BUSINESS:
	c)  Lakeland Funding Spreadsheet – Included for informational purposes.
	13) NEXT MEETING: Thursday, July 13 at 9:30 a.m. at Kent District Library Service Center.
	14) ADJOURNMENT: Ron Suszek moved, supported by John McNaughton to adjourn at 9:59 - motion carried.


	07 July 2023 Kelloggsville Branch
	Rhoades McKee Triathlon Request 2023
	09.30.2023 Caledonia Branch Closure Request
	Kent District Library 2022 Governance Letter
	June Financials
	Check Register - Board Report
	June Voided Checks
	June 2023 Director's  Report
	June for July 2023 Monthly Projects Report
	June 2023 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries July 2023
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	July 2023


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE-06.2023
	07. July 2023 KDL Policy Manual 1.3
	07. July 2023 Policy 2.1.4
	07 July 2023 Packet - Resolution - First  Budget Amendment
	RESOLUTION
	First 2023 Budget Amendment

	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

	07 July 2023 Packet  Budget Amendment Explanation
	Board Resolution Amendment  2023
	07. July 2023 Millage
	Q2 2023 Strategic Plan Update
	Quarterly KPI Report Q2 2023



